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December 23, 2019

David Aladjem c/o American River Flood Control District
Downey Brand LLP

621 Capitol Mall, 18" Floor

Sacramento, CA 95814

Two Rivers Trail Phase 2 Final Environmental Impact Report

Dear Mr. Aladjem,

Thank you for reviewing and providing comments on the Draft Environmental Impact Report
(EIR) for the Two Rivers Trail Phase 2 Project.

Pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 21092.5, enclosed is a copy of your comment
letter and a written response. Please consider this a written response to your agency’s
comments on the Draft EIR pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15088(b).

Please contact me at (916) 808-8272 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Ron Bess
Assistant Planner
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Letter #3. American River Flood Control District (David Aladjem)

LETTER 3

David R.E. Aladjem

D OW N E Y B R A N D daladjem@downeybrand.com 621 Capitol Mall, 1 oor
916.520.5361 Direct Sacramento, CA 95814
916.520.5761 Fax 916.444.1000 Main

downeybrand.com

September 13, 2019

V1A ELECTRONIC MAIL:
RBess(a cityofsacramento.org

Ron Bess

Assistant Planner

Community Development Department
300 Richards Boulevard

Sacramento, California 95811

Re:  Two Rivers Trail (Phase II) Draft Environmental Impact Report

Dear Mr. Bess:

1 am writing on behalf of the American River Flood Control District (the “District”) to comment on
the Two Rivers Trail (Phase IT) Draft Environmental Impact Report (“DEIR”). The District has
been protecting the Sacramento community from floods for over 90 years and is one of the most
well-respected flood control agencies in California. The District has been involved in the Two Rivers
Trail project from its inception to ensure that the project conforms to the District’s mission and
benefits from the District’s long experience with safely maintaining and operating levees.

The District’s primary concern during this process has been to ensure that the trail is located along
the toe of the levee in order to best protect public safety. The DEIR properly reflects the great
lengths that the City has gone to adhere to the requirements of the District’s Recreational Trails
Policy. The District very much appreciates the City’s efforts.

The District adopted its Recreational Trails Policy in 2002 to clarify how best to coordinate with
recreational trail proposals being developed to interface with the urban levee system. The District’s
policy indicated that the District supports recreational uses of the levee as long as flood control 3-1
remained the primary purpose within the levee footprint. For that reason, the Policy states that trails
are acceptable if, where feasible, they are located at the levee toe. This stipulation is to preserve the
District’s free access to the levee crown for levee operations and maintenance activity. No
obstructions are allowed on a levee crown because that is the essential zone of access and travel for
operations, maintenance, inspections, and flood fights. Of the District’s 40 miles of levees in the
Sacramento region, only 4.8 miles of the levee crown roadway is paved for trails. The rest of the
levee crown roadway surface is gravel or chip seal and the majority of trail proposals have been

successfully placed at the levee toe. NG
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The trail policy discourages recreational trails on the levee crown because of the potential threat to
members of the public. The District’s maintenance crews are out on the American River levees using
heavy equipment every work day and 24/7 during periods of high water. Just as with a construction
site where members of the public are separated from heavy equipment, so it is with levees. Members
of the public who choose to recreate on levees need — for their own safety — to be separated from the
District’s operation of heavy equipment. It is for this reason that the District strongly supports the
City’s proposal to have the recreational trail physically separated from and located off of the levee
crown in the River Park area.

To further avoid any threat to the travelling and recreating public, we have taken the following
precautionary measures to our normal procedures.

e We have added light bars to the front back and top of our mowing equipment and added
brighter yellow warning lights. The purpose of these measures is to make our vehicles more
visible to the public.

» For construction operations we:
o Deploy cones when to cordon off the levee equipment on the crown.
o Place signage upstream and downstream of our construction sites.

o Place barricades and detour signs when the public is not permitted to cross through
our construction site.

o Employ flaggers to stop the public from entering our construction sites and inform
the public when it is safe to traverse the site.

cont.

o Instruct our flaggers to immediately notify all construction personnel and equipment e

operators when a member of the public begins crossing through the site without
authorization.

o Conduct safety tailgate session before each work day to instruct all crew members of
the safety protocols required for working on the levee crown.

o Schedule our work to coincide with times of less frequent travel or recreation by the
public.

Taken together, these measures are intended to protect the public from the heavy equipment that
must be used as part of levee maintenance to keep Sacramento safe from flooding.

A number of photographs are attached to this letter. Each photograph demonstrates heavy machinery
at use on a local levee where the levee crown is also in use by the public. These photographs drive
home the importance of avoiding the placement of trail alignments along the crown of a levee. The
danger created by the close proximity of bicyclists and pedestrians to operating heavy machinery is |

N
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acute, and the margin of safety for the general public using the levee crown is minimal. It is
unacceptable to unnecessarily expose the public to such danger.

It is because of this concern for the safety of the recreating public and our awareness of the high risk
of dangerous collisions, the District’s Recreational Trails Policy requires that, where feasible, all
trails must be off the levee crown roadway. The City’s proposed trail alignment shown in the DEIR
adheres to this requirement, and the District again thanks the City for making that a key criterion of

the proposed project.
cont.

In the past, members of the public have raised concerns about the effect of the proposed trail 3-1
alignment on habitat along the American River. Alternatives Two and Three satisfy CEQA’s
requirement to consider feasible alternatives to the proposed project by situating the proposed trail
alignment on the crown of the levee. A trail alignment that is situated entirely on the crown of the
levee, however, poses a significant risk to public safety, for the reasons stated above. Accordingly,
the DEIR correctly rejects both alternatives.

Once again, thank you for the opportunity to review and comment on the DEIR for the Two Rivers
Trail Phase II Project. The District supports the proposed project described in the DEIR and applauds
the City’s team for developing a plan that complies with the District’s Recreational Trails Policy.
The District feels this is the best way to provide a recreation trail and protect public safety. 1

"

Davigﬁ: Aladjem

Enclosures

Very truly yours,

cc: Board of Trustees
Tim Kerr, General Manager
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Comment 3-1:

Writing on behalf of the American River Flood Control District (ARFCD), the commenter describes the
ARFCD’s Recreational Trail Policy, which requires that all recreational trails must be located off the
levee crown roadway to minimize public safety risks resulting from potential user conflicts between
recreationists and levee maintenance equipment. The letter includes a number of photos showing the
types of equipment used on the levees where public uses occurs on the levee top. The commenter
supports the City’s proposed project, as a primarily toe of levee project.

Response Comment 3-1:

The commenter’s support for the proposed project is noted.
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